
 

Waverley Borough Council 

Council Offices, The Burys,  
Godalming, Surrey 
GU7 1HR 
www.waverley.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 

 
To: All Members of the Council  Louise Fleming, Democratic Services & 

Business Support Team Manager 

Policy and Governance 

E-mail: louise.fleming@waverley.gov.uk  

Direct line: 01483 523517 

Calls may be recorded for training or monitoring 

Date: 23 July 2021 

 
 

Dear Councillor 
 

EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - TUESDAY, 3 AUGUST 2021 
 
AN EXTRAORDINARY MEETING of the WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL will be 

held in the WILDRED NOYCE COMMUNITY CENTRE, CROWN COURT CARPARK, 
GODALMING, GU7 1DY on TUESDAY, 3 AUGUST 2021 at 6.15 pm (or on the rise of 

the Council meeting adjourned on 6 July 2021 which is scheduled for 6.00pm the 
same evening) and you are hereby summoned to attend this meeting.  

 

The Agenda for the Meeting is set out below.  
 

Yours sincerely  
 
ROBIN TAYLOR 

 
Head of Policy and Governance 

 

Agendas are available to download from Waverley’s website 
(www.waverley.gov.uk/committees), where you can also subscribe to 
updates to receive information via email regarding arrangements for 

particular committee meetings.  
 

Alternatively, agendas may be downloaded to a mobile device via the free 
Modern.Gov app, available for iPad, Android, Windows and Kindle Fire. 

 
Most of our publications can be provided in alternative formats. For an 

audio version, large print, text only or a translated copy of this publication, 
please contact committees@waverley.gov.uk or call 01483 523351. 

 

The meeting will be webcast and can be viewed by visiting 
www.waverley.gov.uk/committees   

 
 

AGENDA 

http://www.waverley.gov.uk/committees
mailto:committees@waverley.gov.uk
http://www.waverley.gov.uk/committees


 

Page 2 
 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

The Mayor to report apologies for absence. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
To receive from Members, declarations of interest in relation to any items 

included on the agenda for this meeting in accordance with the Waverley Code 
of Local Government Conduct. 

 
3.   MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   

 

4.   LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL   
 
To respond to any questions received from Members of the Council in 

accordance with Procedure Rule 11.2. 
 

The deadline for receipt of questions is 5pm on Tuesday 27 July 2021. 
 
Question from Councillor David Beaman: 

 
“Wednesday 22nd September is designation World Car Free Day in which 

motorists should be encouraged to give up their cars for a day.  Given that 
Waverley Borough Council has declared a Climate Emergency what initiatives 
do Waverley Borough Council intend to take to encourage councillors, staff and 

residents to use alternative forms of transport (public transport, cycling and 
walking) where they are available on that day? 

 
Since both Surrey County Council and Farnham Town Council have also 
declared a Climate Emergency I intend to ask a similar question at meetings of 

Surrey County Council’s Cabinet that is being held on Tuesday 20th July and 
Farnham Town Council’s full Council that is being held on Thursday 29 th July.” 

 
6.   MOTIONS   

 

To receive any motions submitted in accordance with Procedure Rule 12.1. 
 

The deadline for receipt of motions was 5pm on Thursday 22 July 2021. 
 

7.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT COLLABORATION UPDATE  (Pages 5 - 36) 

 
It is recommended that Council considers this report and the attached annexes 

and:  
  

1. Notes the early draft of the outline Heads of Terms of the Inter Authority 

Agreement contained in Annexe 1 (Exempt) to this report, and that 
significant further work is necessary to clarify the detail required to agree 

the Heads of Terms, and that a further report will be submitted to the 
Council to agree the final Heads of Terms. 



 

Page 3 
 

  
2. Approves, subject to consultation, the draft job description, in respect of 

the appointment of a Joint Chief Executive as set out in Annexe 

2 (Exempt); and to agree the following as recommended by South 
East Employers in their paper outlining human resources issues which is 

attached as Annexe 3 (Exempt): 
 
a. That the title of the new role be Joint Chief Executive (rather than 

Joint Managing Director).  
b. That the employing authority should be the existing employer if 

an internal candidate is appointed.  
c. That the salary for the new Joint Chief Executive post be a spot 
salary of £150,000 p.a. including all allowances, duties, and statutory 

responsibilities with the exception of election duties.  
d. That the new Joint Chief Executive post is ring-fenced for 

recruitment from the internal pool of affected employees in the first 
instance and that if no internal appointment is made then the role shall 
be advertised externally.  

e. That, subject to final approval by the Joint Appointments 
Committee the terms and conditions of employment for an internal 

appointment will be the existing terms and conditions of the employing 
authority.  
 

3. Approves the establishment of a Joint Appointments Committee and its 
proposed composition and terms of reference, as set out in Annexe 4. 

 
4. Subject to recommendation (3) above, to confirm the following 

appointments to the Joint Appointments Committee: 

 
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Follows  

 The Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor Peter Clark  
 The Leader of the Principal Opposition Group, Councillor 
Stephen Mulliner   

 
5. To agree that redundancy and any settlement costs incurred as a result 

of moving to a Joint Chief Executive shall be shared equally between 
the Councils and that any pension strain costs (if applicable) will remain 
the responsibility of the employing authority of the affected officer. It is 

noted that the cost sharing arrangement for the remainder of the 
collaboration project will form part of the Inter Authority Agreement. 

 
6. To agree that the costs referred to in recommendation (5) above be 

funded from General Fund reserves.  

 
8.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 
If necessary, to consider the following motion, to be moved by the Mayor: 
 

That, pursuant to Procedure Rule 20 and in accordance with Section 100A(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the 

meeting during consideration of any matter on this agenda on the grounds that 
it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of 



 

Page 4 
 

the proceedings, that if members of the public were present during the item(s), 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information (as defined by Section 
100I of the Act) of the description specified in the appropriate paragraph(s) of 

the revised Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (to be 
identified at the meeting). 

  
 

 

 



 

WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
COUNCIL – 

 
 

3 AUGUST 2021 

 

TITLE: LOCAL GOVERNMENT COLLABORATION UPDATE 

 

 
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Paul Follows, Leader of the Council  
 
Head of Service: The recommendations in this report could affect all services and 

all members of the Senior Management Team. As the 
recommendations in this report specifically affect the Chief 

Executive, it therefore comes under the authority of the two 
Strategic Directors and the Head of Policy and Governance 
(Monitoring Officer).  

 
Key decision:  Yes 

 
Access:  Part Exempt 
 

Note pursuant to Section 100B(5) of the Local Government Act 1972: 

Annexe 1, 2 and 3 to this report contains exempt information by virtue of which the public 

is likely to be excluded during the item to which the report relates, as specified in 
Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, namely:  
 

“Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or 
negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority 

or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.” 
 

“Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour 
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, 

or office holders under, the authority”. 

 
 

1. Purpose and summary 

 

1.1        At its meeting held on 6 July 2021, the Council considered an initial options  
appraisal by the Local Government Association, together with advice from South 
East Employers, and agreed to progress the next steps for collaboration with 

Guildford Borough Council:  In particular, the Council agreed to progress towards 
the establishment of a Single Management Team (Option E) comprising a chief 

executive, directors, and heads of service, as the most appropriate means for 
bringing forward business cases for future collaboration. The two councils will 
share a management structure, which will be responsible for recommending any 

further collaboration, service-by-service.  The resolution of the Council is set out 
below: 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7.



 

1.  Full Council pursues the option of creating a single management team,  comprised 
of statutory officers (Head of Paid Service; Chief Finance Officer;  Monitoring 
Officer), directors and heads of service as the most appropriate  means for 

bringing forward business cases for future collaboration; 
 

2.  Full Council asks the Council’s HR Manager to take the necessary action, in 
 consultation with Guildford Borough Council and with the support and advice 
 from South East Employers and as set out within the addendum to annexe 3 of 

 this report, to make arrangements for a recruitment and selection of a single joint 
 Chief Executive (acting as Head of Paid Service for both Waverley and Guildford 

 Borough Councils), including making arrangements for a senior officer 
 recruitment panel (to include the Leader of the Principal Opposition Group and 
 the Council Leader), so that a report may be brought to a future meeting of Full 

 Council recommending the appointment of a suitable candidate; and 
 

3.  A report be submitted to a session of full council on the following matters a) 
 heads of terms for the proposed Inter Authority Agreement to establish 
 governance arrangements for joint working and identify how costs, liabilities and 

 savings will be shared b) the proposed Job Description and Terms and 
 Conditions in respect of the appointment of a joint Chief Executive and c) the 

 establishment of a joint appointments committee including its composition. 
 

1.2      This report provides an update on the collaboration and sets out the information 

 that Council requested be submitted for further agreement by proposing a job 
 description and terms and conditions for a joint chief executive and the terms of 

 reference for a joint appointments committee.  The report also sets out an early 
 draft of the heads of terms for an inter-authority agreement but notes that there 
 are a number of areas where further detail is required before heads of terms can 

 be agreed. 
 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that Council considers this report and the attached annexes 

and: 
 

(1) Notes the early draft of the outline Heads of Terms of the Inter Authority Agreement 

contained in Annexe 1 (Exempt) to this report, and that significant further work is 
necessary to clarify the detail required to agree the Heads of Terms, and that a 

further report will be submitted to the Council to agree the final Heads of Terms. 
 

(2) Approves, subject to consultation, the draft job description in respect of the 

appointment of a Joint Chief Executive as set out in Annexe 2 (Exempt); and to 
agree the following as recommended by South East Employers in their paper 

outlining human resources issues which is attached as Annexe 3 (Exempt): 
 

(a) That the title of the new role be Joint Chief Executive (rather than Joint 

Managing Director). 
(b) That the employing authority should be the existing employer if an internal 

candidate is appointed. 
(c) That the salary for the new Joint Chief Executive post be a spot salary of 

Page 6



 

£150,000 p.a. including all allowances, duties, and statutory responsibilities 
with the exception of election duties. 

(d) That the new Joint Chief Executive post is ring-fenced for recruitment from 

the internal pool of affected employees in the first instance and that if no 
internal appointment is made then the role shall be advertised externally. 

(e) That, subject to final approval by the Joint Appointments Committee the 
terms and conditions of employment for an internal appointment will be the 
existing terms and conditions of the employing authority. 

 
(3) Approves the establishment of a Joint Appointments Committee and its proposed 

composition and terms of reference, as set out in Annexe 4. 
 

(4) Subject to recommendation (3) above, to confirm the following appointments to the 

Joint Appointments Committee: 
 

 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Follows 

 The Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor Peter Clark 

 The Leader of the Principal Opposition Group, Councillor Stephen Mulliner  
 

(5) To agree that redundancy and any settlement costs incurred as a result of moving 

to a Joint Chief Executive shall be shared equally between the Councils and that 
any pension strain costs (if applicable) will remain the responsibility of the 

employing authority of the affected officer. It is noted that the cost sharing 
arrangement for the remainder of the collaboration project will form part of the Inter 
Authority Agreement. 

 
(6) To agree that the costs referred to in recommendation (5) above be funded from 

General Fund reserves. 
 
 
3. Reason for the recommendation 

 

3.1         To approve the initial documents and governance required to progress the 
collaboration with Guildford Borough Council. 

 
4.  Background 

 

4.1 Previous reports have described the events of 2020 that led to the eleven district 
councils in Surrey commissioning a report from KPMG on local government 
collaboration. The KPMG report presented a strong case for councils to work 

together more closely in the context of continued funding reductions from central 
government and the financial consequences of the Covid pandemic. It was notable 

and unsurprising that KPMG identified that Guildford and Waverley Boroughs could 
be natural partners, given the geography, infrastructure links and similar sizes. 
Despite both councils having made efficiencies and cut costs in recent years, both 

face extremely difficult financial challenges. In this context, the political leaderships 
of the two councils, supported by senior officers, held initial discussions in an 

informal working group about how the two councils can collaborate in the future. 
The expected outcomes of this work are the retention of two separate democratic 
councils, but with greater sharing of resources and staffing.  Council also set out a 

vision statement which articulated the key drivers for collaboration as more than just 

Page 7



 

financial and articulated that the Councils had an ambition to “protect, improve, and 
expand discretionary services, and explore new services”. 
 

4.2  The report to Council on 6 July set out two broad approaches and a range of 
options as to how collaboration between the two councils could proceed.  After 

considering the options for a way forward both Councils decided that ‘Option E’, 
which was to establish a single shared management team, comprising a chief 
executive, directors and heads of service, as the most appropriate means for 

bringing forward business cases for future collaboration. The two councils will share 
a management structure, who will be responsible for recommending further 

collaboration, service by service.   
 
4.3 Following the agreement to proceed with the collaboration, and in line with the 

Council resolution, officers have commenced the process of bringing forward an 
appropriate governance model that will eventually include setting up a formal joint 

committee (powers to be agreed) and an inter-authority agreement covering how 
the partnership will be governed, including cost and risk-sharing, dispute resolution 
and exit clauses will be required.  Officers have also started to progress the 

recruitment of a joint chief executive who will then progress the collaboration. 
 

Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA)  

 
4.4 Guildford and Waverley officers have jointly instructed external solicitors to advise 

on and draft an IAA, including heads of terms, and to provide advice on their 
content.   Initial advice has confirmed the views of internal Legal Services officers 

that the negotiation and agreement of the IAA will take time, with elements such as 
the financial agreement between the authorities requiring significant detail in order 
to agree an IAA.  Once the IAA has been fully drafted, we will bring it, together with 

a detailed business case, to Council for agreement.  As a result, a high-level early 
draft of the Heads of Terms is contained in Annexe 1 (exempt) which will be 

populated when further information becomes available following the production of 
the detailed business case. 

 
Job Description  

 

4.5 The first stage of the recruitment process is for both Councils to agree the job 
description and terms and conditions for a joint chief executive, subject to 
consultation.  Officers sought the advice of South East Employers (SEE) in 

determining an appropriate job description, based on experience of other Councils 
who have decided to collaborate, and requested that SEE propose a salary and 

terms and conditions for the post.  The proposed job description is contained in 
Annexe 2 (exempt) and a report from SEE providing human resources advice to 
both Councils is contained in Appendix 3 (exempt).  The report at Annexe 3 makes 

a number of recommendations to Council including:  
 

(a) That the title of the new role be Joint Chief Executive (rather than Joint 
Managing Director) 

(b) That the employing authority should be the existing employer if an internal 

candidate is appointed. 
(c) That the salary for the new Joint Chief Executive post be a spot salary of 

£150,000 p.a. including all allowances, duties, and statutory responsibilities 
with the exception of election duties 

Page 8



 

(d) That the new Joint Chief Executive post is ring-fenced for recruitment from 
the internal pool of affected employees in the first instance and that if no 
internal appointment is made then the role will should be advertised 

externally 
(e) That, subject to final approval by the Joint Appointments Committee, the 

terms and conditions of employment for an internal appointment will be the 
existing terms and conditions of the employing authority.  

 
Joint Appointments Committee  

 

4.6 Officers have discussed with the Leaders of the two Councils the proposed terms of 
reference for the Joint Appointments Committee which will oversee the recruitment 
and selection process for the joint chief executive, making recommendations to both 

Councils on the final appointment, and any joint statutory officer and director posts.  
The terms of reference are contained in Annexe 4 for Council approval. 

 
4.7 It is recommended that this Council is represented on the Joint Committee by the 

Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Follows, the Deputy Leader, Councillor Peter 

Clark, and the Leader of the Principal Opposition Group, Councillor Stephen 
Mulliner, which is in line with current practice in Waverley in respect of senior officer 

appointments. 
 
 
5. Relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Service Plan 

 

5.1.       The Corporate Strategy 2020-25 emphasises “open, democratic and participative 
governance”, “high quality public services accessible for all”, and “a financially 
sound Waverley, with infrastructure and resilient service fit for the future”. These 

principles will continue to guide our approach to this project. 
 

 
6. Implications of decision 

 
6.1 Resource (Finance, procurement, staffing, IT)  

 

6.1.1  The Chief Finance Officer’s advice to Council on 6 July was that from the point of 
decision to collaborate and appoint a joint chief executive, costs incurred for the 
employment of the new post will be split on an equal basis (50/50) between each 

authority.  The CFO also proposed that any redundancy or financial settlement 
incurred as a result of moving to a joint chief executive be shared equally between 

the Councils regardless of which post is affected and that any pension strain costs 
(if applicable) remain the responsibility of the employing authority. 

 

6.1.2 It should be noted that the Inter Authority Agreement will deal, amongst other 
things, with the treatment of costs and liabilities arising from other aspects of the 

collaboration process.  
 
6.1.3 The saving applicable on the appointment of a joint chief executive will be reported 

to a later meeting once an appointment to the role is proposed. 
 
6.2 Risk management 

 

Page 9



 

6.2.1   Annexe 4 to the report to Council on 6 July contained the risks associated with the 
collaboration.  There are no further risks identified at this stage. 

 
6.3 Legal 
 

6.3.1   In relation to shared services and staffing, Section 113 of the Local Government Act 
1972 provides that any local authority may enter into an agreement with another 

local authority for the placing at the disposal of the latter for the purposes of their 
functions on such terms as may be provided by the agreement, of the services of 

officers employed by the former. The starting point for the shared arrangement 
agreed by Council on 6 July is the creation of an Inter Authority Agreement under 
Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 and establishment of a Joint 

Appointments Committee under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972. In 
either case an established method of governance, strategic and operational 

management, decision-making, financial and any other working arrangements 
would need to be agreed between the two authorities and included in the 
agreement. These arrangements have been put in place by many local authorities 

across the country in a variety of partnerships.  

 

6.3.2 The Inter Authority Agreement outline Heads of Terms are attached at Annexe 1 
(exempt). A detailed business case is required before the Heads of Terms can be 
further populated and finalised. Details of who will be the employing authority and 

how staff are shared as well as budget, savings, and liabilities apportionment are, in 
particular, required. 

 
6.3.3 The proposal for the joint chief executive is that if an internal candidate is appointed 

to the role then the current employing Council will remain as the employing 

authority. If officers do change employer this will be a TUPE scenario and terms and 
conditions of transferring officers will be protected. Equal pay issues will need to be 

looked into to ensure officers doing the same work are treated equally. Changes to 
terms and conditions will require consultation. Further specific legal advice should 
be taken in relation to potential redundancies and varying of terms and conditions. 

 
6.3.4 The Councils will remain as separate democratic entities with their own constitutions 

to be followed. Officers working across the Councils will need to be aware of the 
differences and to ensure that decisions are taken in accordance with the relevant 
constitution.  

 
6.4 Equality, diversity and inclusion 

 
6.4.1   Equality impact assessments are carried out when necessary across the Council to 

ensure service delivery meets the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty 

under the Equality Act 2010. There are no immediate equality, diversity, or inclusion 
implications in this report’s recommendations. Impact assessments may be required 

as proposals are developed and implemented and will be reported as appropriate. 
 
6.5 Climate emergency declaration 

 
6.5.1    The climate change emergency declaration and the urgent target for net zero 

carbon by 2030 is a critical objective for both councils. While no specific impacts 
on the climate emergency declaration have been identified as a consequence of 
this report’s recommendations, the Council will be assessing and prioritising the 

Page 10



 

environmental, climate and carbon impacts of any proposals that emerge. It may 
be noted that Waverley Borough Council, like Guildford, has declared a climate 
emergency and stated an ambition to “work towards making the Council’s activities 

net-zero carbon by 2030”; potential synergies across the two councils can be 
explored as part of this project. 

 
7. Consultation and engagement 

 

7.1        No consultation process has taken place on this report.  Subject to the approval of 
the job description for the joint chief executive, a consultation process with the 

affected employees will begin in August for a period of 30 days. 
 
8. Other options considered 

 
8.1 The alternatives would be to not appoint a joint chief executive and not progress 

the collaboration option agreed by Council on 6 July or to reconsider the options 
set out to Council on 6 July. 

 
9. Governance journey 

 

9.1 This matter is for decision by the Council on 3 August.  Note that Guildford 
Borough Council currently intends to discuss this item at its Council meeting on 28 
July. If the two Councils do not agree on the detail contained in this report, further 

informal conversations between the Executives may be required. 
 

 
 
Annexes: 

 
Annexe 1 – Early draft of Heads of Terms for the Inter Authority Agreement [Exempt]  

Annexe 2 – Draft Job Description for new joint chief executive [Exempt]  
Annexe 3 – Human Resources Advice from South East Employers [Exempt] 
Annexe 4 – Joint Appointments Committee Terms of Reference 

 

 
Background Papers 

 
There are no background papers, as defined by Section 100D(5) of the Local Government 

Act 1972).  

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

Name: Louise Fleming,  
Position: Democratic Services and Business Support Team Manager (Deputy Monitoring 

Officer) 
Telephone: 0148 3523517 

Email:  louise.fleming@waverley.gov.uk 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 

Legal Services: Borough Solicitor 21 July 2021 
Head of Finance: S151 officer 22 July 2021 

Strategic Director: S151 officer 22 July 2021 
Portfolio Holder: 22 July 2021 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

GUILDFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL AND WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL  

JOINT APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE  

COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

This Joint Committee is to be established in accordance with Section 102 (1) (b) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 (Appointment of committees) 

 

MEMBERS: 6  

The Joint Appointments Committee shall comprise the respective Leaders of both councils 

plus two members appointed by Guildford Borough Council and two members appointed by 

Waverley Borough Council (one of whom will be the Leader of Waverley’s Principal 

Opposition Group)  

 

Appointments shall be made in accordance with the Local Government (Committees and 

Political Groups) Regulations 1990 

 

QUORUM: 3 (subject to each council being represented at a meeting by at least 1 member)  

 

PLACE OF MEETINGS: The venue for meetings of the Joint Appointments Committee shall 

normally alternate between the two councils with the host Leader chairing the meeting. The 

venue for the first meeting shall be at Waverley Borough Council offices 

 

CHAIRMAN: The Joint Appointments Committee shall be chaired alternately between the 

councils by their respective Leaders 

 

GENERAL ROLE: Adopting and exercising such of the functions of Guildford Borough 

Council and Waverley Borough Council (“the councils”) as can be delegated by those 

councils in respect of the appointment of the councils’ Joint Chief Executive/Head of Paid 

Service and any Joint Statutory Officer and Director posts as are covered by the Local 

Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended) or any successor 

regulations 

 

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS: As and when required 

 

SUBSTITUTES: Substitutes shall not be appointed 

 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

ROLE AND FUNCTION:  

Appointment of Joint Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service 

(i) Subject to (ii) below, to undertake and determine on behalf of the councils all 

aspects of the process for the recruitment and selection of the Joint Chief 

Executive/Head of Paid Service, including final approval of the terms and 

conditions of employment (based on current provisions) for that post 

 

(ii) The final decision as to the appointment of the joint Chief Executive/Head of Paid 

Service shall be reserved to full meetings of both councils, and subject to no 

material or well-founded objection to the making of an offer of appointment being 

received by either Leader on behalf of their respective executives  

 

(iii) To determine pension discretions relating to the Joint Chief Executive/ Head of 

Paid Service  

 

(iv) To consider any financial settlement of an affected employee who is unsuccessful 

in respect of the selection of the Joint Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service, and 

to make recommendations as appropriate for formal approval by each council  

 

(v) To confirm into post, or otherwise, the successful candidate following any 

probationary or trial period  

 

(vi) To be responsible for ad-hoc employment matters affecting the Joint Chief 

Executive/Head of Paid Service post, including consideration and determination   

of any ‘cost of living’ pay award 

 

 

Appointment of any Joint Statutory Officer1 posts 

 

(i) Subject to (ii) below, to undertake and determine on behalf of the councils all 

aspects of the process for the appointment of any Joint Statutory Officer posts 

 

(ii) The final decision as to the appointment of any Joint Statutory Officer posts shall 

be reserved to full meetings of both councils and, where the provisions of Part II 

of Schedule 2 to the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 

2001 (as amended) apply to any such appointment, subject to no material or well-

founded objection to the making of an offer of appointment being received by 

either Leader on behalf of their respective executives  

                                                                 
1
 Section 151/Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer 

Page 34



 

 

 

(iii) To determine pension discretions relating to any Joint Statutory Officer posts  

 

(iv) To consider any financial settlement of an affected employee who is unsuccessful 

in respect of the selection of any Joint Statutory Officer posts, and where 

necessary to make recommendations as appropriate for formal approval by each 

council  

 

(v) To be responsible for ad-hoc employment matters affecting any Joint Statutory 

Officer posts  

 

Appointment of any Joint Directors  

 

(i) Subject to (ii) below, to undertake and determine on behalf of the councils all 

aspects of the process for the appointment of any Joint Directors 

 

(ii) The appointment of any Joint Directors shall be subject to no material or well-

founded objection to the making of an offer of appointment being received by 

either Leader on behalf of their respective executives  

 

(iii) To determine pension discretions relating to any Joint Directors 

 

(iv) To consider any financial settlement of an affected employee who is unsuccessful 

in respect of the selection and appointment of any Joint Directors, and where 

necessary to make recommendations as appropriate for formal approval by each 

council  

 

(vii) To be responsible for ad-hoc employment matters affecting any Joint Director 

posts  

 

SERVICING THE JOINT APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE:  The Joint Appointments 

Committee shall be serviced by committee staff from the council hosting the relevant 

meeting. 

 

 

 

MEETINGS OF THE JOINT APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING PROCEDURE: 

 

Page 35



 

 

1. A meeting of the Joint Appointments Committee shall be summoned by the relevant 

officer of the Council hosting the meeting who shall give a minimum of five clear 

working days’ notice (or less in the case of urgency)   

 

2. Meetings of the Joint Appointments Committee shall be held in public except in so far 

as the matters for decision relate to issues which can be dealt with in private in 

accordance with Section 100A (4) and (5) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 

amended)  

 

3. The Joint Appointments Committee shall have no function or power delegated to it in 

any circumstance where a majority decision cannot be made without the need for the 

chairman or person presiding having to exercise their second or casting vote 

 

4. The order of business at meetings of the Joint Appointments Committee shall include 

the following: 

 

(a) Apologies for Absence 

(b) Disclosures of Interest 

(c) Adoption of the Minutes of the previous meeting 

(d) Matters set out in the agenda for the meeting 

(e) Matters not set out in the agenda for the meeting but which the chairman agrees 

pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 

amended) should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency 

 

5. Any matter will be decided by a simple majority of those members of the Joint 

Appointments Committee present and voting at the time the question was put.  A 

vote shall be taken either by show of hands or, if there is no dissent, by the 

affirmation of the meeting 

Page 36


	Agenda
	7. LOCAL GOVERNMENT COLLABORATION UPDATE
	Annexe 1 Draft Heads of Terms EXEMPT FINAL
	Annexe 2 - Guildford Waverley CEX role profile EXEMPT
	Annexe 3 - HR advice from South East Employers EXEMPT
	Annexe 4 - Joint Appointments Committee - Draft Terms of Reference


